
Heritage Building Plaque Application 
Name: Bob and Beth Tierney 
Building Address: 225 Villa Street 
Building Name (for public/commercial structures only): 
Current Owners: Bob and Beth Tierney 
Street: 375 Prairie Street  
City: Elgin State:  IL Zip: 60120 

If different than above: 
Applicant’s Name   Daytime Phone: 
Address:   City:  State:  Zip: 
Email: 
Address: 
 
 Original Owner:  Angel Corbey 
 Date of Construction:  1905 
 Architect (if known):  William Wright Abell 
 Builder (if known)   
 
Please attach the following information: 

1. Statement of Value: This statement should include a narrative description of the 
historical and architectural value of the building. 

2. Photocopies of relevant research materials including but not limited to, Sanborn 
Maps, City Directories and original property deeds.  See page 3 of the program 
guidelines for research locations. 

3. Building Alterations: List any alterations to the exterior of the building.  Attach 
copies of all building permit applications. 

4. Photographs:  Include a recent photograph in which the building is clearly visible.  
Additional photographs depicting close-up details of decorative features are 
helpful. 

Stipulations 
 If the building is not awarded a plaque, the application fee will be refunded. 

This application and submitted materials shall be retained by the City of Elgin as 
a part of the permanent record of the building. 

The Elgin Heritage Commission has the authority to edit and publish the 
information submitted in the application.  This does not prohibit others from using the 
information. 

When awarded, the plaque will remain with the building and should not be altered 
or removed from the building.  It is the City’s responsibility to replace the plaque if or 
when the situation warrants it. 

In addition to the above stipulations, the undersigned attests that the information 
provided is, to the best of his/her knowledge, accurate. 

 
Owner’s Signature _____________________________________ Date ____________ 



HISTORIC SIGNIFICANCE 
The property where 225 Villa Street sits was originally part of the J. T. Gifford 
Addition to Elgin. In December of 1902, part of Gifford’s land was platted as O. 
Davidson’s Heirs Subdivision. 225 Villa was constructed on Lot 14 of the new 
subdivision. George Bernard sold Lot 14 of O. Davidsons Heirs subdivision of part of 
Block 8 of J. T. Gifford’s Addition to Elgin to Angeline T. Corbey in 1903 for $1000.  
Angeline, a widow, and her children, Leon Joseph and Louise, moved into their new 
$3800 house at 225 Villa after its completion in 1905. The first City Directory listing 
is in 1907-08.  Angeline worked at the watch factory in the dial room, and later as a 
blocker. She legally changed her first name to “Angel”.  She died in 1965. It is 
interesting to note that her name on the tombstone appears as “Engel Corbey”. 
Engel is the German word for Angel. 
 
On August 27, 1891, Angel Corbey, filed an application to have her husband, Edward 
S. Corbey, legally declared insane. He was at the time confined in the Insane Hospital 
in Elgin. On October 5, 1891, a jury concurred that he was insane and incapable of 
taking charge of his property and effects. The same day, Angel was appointed 
conservator. Edward died in Philadelphia in 1899. 
 
Edward S. Corbey was born in 1864 to Joseph E. and Louise Corbey. Joseph, born 
c.1842 in New York, worked as a shoemaker. In 1863 he married Louise, daughter of 
French-Canadian parents. Edward was apparently their only child.  Joseph died in 
1878. 
Son Edward worked as a painter, and was also employed in the dial department of 
Elgin National Watch Factory. He was a member of the watch factory football team, 
and is pictured in the December 1921 issue of the Watchword, the publication of 
Elgin National Watch Factory.  
 
In 1868, Louise, presumably divorced, remarried. Her second husband was Arnold 
Calame, son of Catherine and Armand Calame, a watchmaker who emigrated from 
Switzerland with seven of his ten children in 1867 to work in the Elgin National 
Watch factory.  
 
Louise and Arnold had three children, Arnold J. (born c.1870), Clarence A. (born 
c.1873) and Carrie S. (born c.1880). In 1870, Louise E. Calame was living with her 
husband’s father, Armand (b.1823), son Edward age 7, son Arnold age 7 months, 
and sisters-in-law Mary Calame age 17 and Rachel Calame age 15. Rachel would 
later marry W. W. Abell, architect for 225 Villa. In 1880, Louise, now head of the 
family, lived at 163 River Street with her four children. In 1890, Louise lived at 141 
Grove Avenue with daughter-in-law Angel Corbey, grandchildren Louisa A. and Leon 
J. Corbey and three boarders. 
 
Louise Corbey married John Christie, a life-long resident of Elgin, and the couple 
lived at 225 Villa with Louise’s mother Angel. John was a carpenter-contractor, and 
Louise worked initially at the Elgin Watch Factory and later at Swan’s department 
store and Ackemann’s furniture store. Louise, widowed, moved to Los Angeles 



California, where she died intestate on August 17, 1960, leaving her mother Angel 
and brother Leon and his wife Doris I. Corbey as owners of 225 Villa.  
 
In 1960, the Corbeys sold the house to Charles and Hester Lorraine Tredway, who 
took out a mortgage for $11,500 which they paid off in 1972. Charles was a painter, 
and had a business doing painting, decorating and paper-hanging. 
 
According to Elgin City directories, Charles continued to live here until 1993, 
although Charles Tredway, a widower, sold to Kirk J. Cunningham in 1988. 
Cunningham, “divorced and not remarried” financed the property for $78,000.   
 
In 1989, Brian Anderson acquired the house, intrigued that it had retained most of 
its original architectural integrity.  Brian, a relative of Conrad Ackemann, furnished 
the house with a number of items which had been passed down through the 
Ackemann family. 
 
In 1998, Paul and Stacy Sargent purchased 225 Villa, and stayed there until 2009, 
when Melanie Broad bought it. Broad lost the house to foreclosure in 2013, and the 
current owners acquired it in 2014.  
 
Bob and Beth Tierney, who married in 2005, are real estate investors interested in 
high-quality and historically sensitive restoration of older homes. Living nearby, 
they use 225 Villa as their office.  
 
The house was on the Gifford Park Association House Tour in 1990 and again in 
2016. 
 
Deed references to Kane County Recorder of Deeds document books: 
   Book 440 p. 395 8/15/1904 purchase by Angeline Corbey 
   Book 2047 p. 611 10.26/1960 affidavit regarding death of Louise C. Christie   
   Book 2047 p. 612 11/4/1960 warranty deed from Corbey to Tredway                                          
   Book 2047 p. 613 10/13/1960 Tredway mortgage for $11,500 
   Document 1912525 5/26/1988 warranty deed from Tredway to Cunningham 
   Document 1912526 6/2/1988 mortgage Kirk Cunningham 
   Document 2001K035597 4/20/2002 mortgage Paul Sargent 
   Document 2009K009137 2/10/2009 mortgage Melanie Broad 
   Document 2013K087300 12/19/2013sheriff’s deed of foreclosure 
 
ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE 
Legal description: Lot 14 of O. Davidsons Heirs subdivision of part of Block 8 of J. T. 
Gifford’s Addition to Elgin 
 
The Elgin Daily Courier News of November 28, 1905 lists the construction of a house 
costing $3800 on Villa Street for A. Corbey. It is perhaps not surprising that Angel 
Corbey selected W. W. Abell, a relative by marriage of her deceased husband 
Edward, to be the architect. 



 
The two-story house, with a flared hipped roof is perhaps best described as 
transitional between the later Prairie Style and the earlier Queen Anne Style, with 
many details that were specialties of the architect. The floor plan echoes that of the 
American Foursquare, with living room, dining room and kitchen on the first story 
and bedrooms upstairs.  
 
Prairie elements include the relatively low-pitched roof with wide eaves. Harkening 
back to the Victorian era are the irregular wall surfaces with an oriel bay on the 
northwest elevation, cut-away bays, and two-story polygonal bays. The glory of the 
front elevation, a projecting balcony with shingle-clad walls, geometric corbels, 
ornamental roof supports and quatrefoil decoration is seen in a number of other W. 
W. Abell designs. The scrollwork handrail is a unique feature. 
 
Architect William Wright Abell (1853-1916) designed a number of architecturally 
important buildings in Elgin between 1891 and 1915. 
Born in Cummington, Massachusetts in 1853, William was the first child of Joshua L. 
and Mahala Connor Abell.  He had two siblings, Rodolphus Elliott (1858-1942) and 
Ashley J. (c.1863-1922). In his late teens, W. W. Abell worked for Massachusetts 
Central Railroad, and architectural and civil engineering firms in Springfield, 
Massachusetts and Nova Scotia and New Brunswick in Canada. In 1873 he came to 
the Elgin National Watch Factory where his uncle, George Hunter, was 
superintendent. Hunter was married to Louise Connor, a sister of Mahala Connor 
Abell. Joshua and Mahala Abell moved to Illinois in 1878, eventually settling in 
Chicago, where Mahala died in 1881, and Joshua in 1893. William’s brother 
Rodolphus came to work at the Watch Factory in 1877, and soon thereafter married 
Anna Kohn. He then became a partner in the Kohn family’s meat business. Similarly, 
Ashley J. Abell came to Elgin in 1880 and worked at the watch factory until 1891. 
The three Abell brothers were all active in the Watch Factory Band, which traveled 
extensively in the Midwest, helping to advertise Elgin watches. 
 
William W. Abell married Rachel Calame (1855-1941) on October 11, 1877. She was 
one of ten children born in Switzerland to Armand and Catherine Spery Calame. 
Armand, a watchmaker, and eight of his children all worked at the watch factory.  
W. W. Abell also worked there for 18 years, making among other work technical 
drawings for watchmaking equipment.  
 
W. W. Abell’s earliest architectural designs in Elgin were the Teeple Barn on north 
Randall Road and the Oriental Roller Rink on south Grove Avenue, both completed 
in 1885.  In 1891, he opened a private practice, and worked in nearly every state in 
the country. It is estimated that he designed around 100 buildings in Elgin. He 
belonged to the American Institute of Architects, Illinois Society of Civil Engineers 
and Surveyors, the Ancient Order of United Workmen, Archidean Union, and Elgin 
Century Club. 
He resided at 527 Laurel. William and Rachel had two children, Ralph Elliott (1880-
1947) and Claudia Violet (1886-1961). After earning a master’s degree in 



architecture at Cornell University, Ralph joined his father’s firm, which was 
renamed W. W. Abell and Son, Architects and Civil Engineers. 
  
The accessory structure at the rear of the lot has an unusual shape; the elevation 
facing the house is parallel with the house, the two side elevations are perpendicular 
to this, and the opposite side is parallel with the alley which runs on a diagonal. The 
section of the building facing the house is one story; the section bordering the alley 
has two stories. 
 
ALTERATIONS 
According to previous owner Brian Anderson, while Angel Corbey lived at 225 Villa, 
her son-in-law John Christie, a carpenter and contractor, transformed the original 
clapboard barn at the back of the lot into a stucco-clad coach house complete with 
running water and a wood-burning stove for heat. Only the wall facing the alley 
remains clad in clapboard. 
 
After 1998, Paul Sargent modified the coach house window on the second story 
facing the alley. At this time, the enclosed gutters on the front porch were removed. 
The original handrail and balustrade on the rear porch were also replaced. The 
same owner also re-roofed both the main house and the coach house. 
The balcony on the front elevation originally had seasonal screen panels, including a 
screen door that incorporated the decorative quatrefoils on the balustrade of the 
balcony. These were apparently removed at the time of the 2013 foreclosure.  
 
 
  



Addenda 
Photos of house  
Deeds 
   Book 440 p. 395 8/15/1904 purchase by Angeline Corbey 
   Book 2047 p. 612 1960 sale to Tredways 
   Book 2047 p. 613 Tredway mortgage 
   Document 1912526 1988 Cunningham mortgage 
Subdivision plat map 
1895 Aerial map excerpt showing empty lot 
Sanborn fire insurance maps 1903 and 1913 
Building report November 28, 1905 
City directory page 1907 
Survey pages 2008 
Tax record 1979 
GPA house tour notes 1990 
GPA house tour notes 2016 
Ed Corbey in Watchword 1921 
Conservatorship document for Ed Corbey 1891 
E. S. Corbey obituary Elgin Advocate February 25, 1899 
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Deed Book 440 p. 395 purchase by Angeline Corbey 



 
 



 
 
 



 
 

 
1988 Mortgage K. J. Cunningham 
 
 



 
O. Davidsons Heirs Subdivision platted December 1902 Book 16 of Plats p. 11 
 

 
1895 Aerial map showing vacant land pre-subdivision 
 



 
1903 Sanborn Fire Insurance map showing empty lot at 225 Villa 
 
 



 
1913 Sanborn Fire Insurance map showing 225 Villa with large accessory structure. 
 



 
 



 
 



 



 



 
Tax record 1979 
 



 
 



 
 



 
 



 
 



 



 
1891 Application for conservatorship of Edward Corbey  
 
 
 
 
 



Obituary of Edward Corbey: 

 


